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Attorneysforplaintiffs NorthernAlaskaEnvironmentalCenter,et al.

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FORTHE DISTRICT OF ALASKA

NORTHERNALASKA ENVIRONMENTAL CENTER, )
NATIONAL AUDUBON SOCIETY, )
THE WWDERI~~ESSSOCIETY, )
NATURAL RESOURCESDEFENSECOUNCIL, )
SIERRACLUB, )
ALASKA WILDERNESSLEAGUE,and )
CENTERFOR BIOLOGICAL DIVERSITY, )

)
Plaintiffs, )

)
v. ) Civ. No.

)
GALE NORTON,Secretaryofthe Interior; )
HENRI BISSON,BureauofLandManagementStateDirector; )
theBUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT, )
andtheFISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE, )
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, )

)
Defendants. )

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
(5 U.S.C. §§ 702-706;42 U.S.C. § 4332; 16 U.S.C. § 1536;42 U.S.C. § 6504(a))

INTRODUCTION

1. This actionchallengesthedefendants’decisionto open8.8million acresofpublic

landin theNationalPetroleumReserve-Alaska(theReserve)to oil andgasleasing.The



defendants’decisiontogetherwith theNorthwestNationalPetroleumReserve-AlaskaFinal

IntegratedActivity Plan/ EnvironmentalImpactStatement(November2003)(FEIS)violatesthe

NationalEnvironmentalPolicyAct (NEPA), theEndangeredSpeciesAct (ESA), theNational

PetroleumReserveProductionAct (NPRPA)andtheAdministrativeProcedureAct (APA).

2. TheFEISdoesnotconstitutean adequatedetailedstatementaddressingtheimpacts

from andalternativesto oil andgasdevelopmentin theNorthwestportionoftheNational

PetroleumReserve-Alaska(hereinafterreferredto asNorthwestplanningarea)asrequiredby

NEPA. 42 U.S.C. § 4332(C);40 C.F.R. § 1500~ seq

.

3. Theleasingdecisionalsothreatensto jeopardizethethreatenedSteller’s and

spectacledeidersin violationoftheESA, 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2),becausetheFishandWildlife

Service’sbiological opiniondoesnot fully considertheseimpactsto thespeciesoftheactivities

authorizedby the decisionin violation of 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b).

4. Theleasingdecisionviolatestheprohibition in theNPRPA,42 U.S.C. § 6504(a),

againstoil developmentin theReserve.

JURISDICTION

5. This Courthasjurisdictionpursuantto 28 U.S.C. § 1331,28U.S.C.§§ 2201-02and

5 U.S.C.§§ 702-706.Venueis appropriateunder28 U.S.C. § 1391(e).

6. The 1980appropriationsactcalling for “an expeditiousprogram”ofoil andgas

leasingin theReserverequiredthat an actionchallengingtheadequacyofanEIS for activities

authorizedby theappropriationsactbebroughtwithin 60 daysafterpublicationofthe

availability oftheFEISin theFederalRegister.42 U.S.C. § 6508. Thoughplaintiffs believethis

requirementdoesnot applyto theproposednewprogramofoil and gasleasingin theReserve,to
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preserveplaintiffs’ claimsunderNEPA, this actionis neverthelessfiled within 60 daysof

December19, 2003,thedatenoticeofavailabilityoftheFEISwaspublishedin theFederal

Register,68 Fed.Reg.70,795,70,796(December19, 2003).

PLAINTIFFS

7. TheNationalAudubonSociety,foundedin 1905, is anot-for-profitcorporation

organizedunderthe lawsof theStateofNewYork, with its headquartersoffice in NewYork,

NewYork, andastateoffice in Anchorage,Alaska. Audubonalsohasover500 local chapters

aroundthe country,including six chaptersin Alaska. Audubon’smissionis to conserveand

restorenaturalecosystems,focusingon birds, otherwildlife, andtheirhabitatsfor thebenefitof

humanityandtheearth’sbiological diversity. Audubonhasmorethan 500,000members

nationwide,includingapproximately2,400membersin Alaska. Audubonhasbeenactively

involvedin advocatingfor protectionofthebiological resourcesin theWesternArctic.

8. TheWildernessSociety,foundedin 1935, is anationalnon-profitmembership

organizationdevotedto preservingwildernessandwildlife, protectingAmerica’sprimeforests,

parks,rivers, deserts,andshorelines,andfosteringanAmericanlandethic. It hasapproximately

200,000membersnationwide,675 ofwhomlive in Alaska,andhashadalongstanding

involvementwith the issuessurroundingtheimpactsof oil andgasdevelopmenton public lands,

including landsacrossAlaska’sArctic andwithin theReserve.

9. NaturalResourcesDefenseCouncil is anon-profitenvironmentalmembership

organizationwith morethan550,000membersthroughouttheUnitedStates.It hashada

longstandingandactiveinterestintheprotectionoftheenvironmentinAlaska’sArctic,

including thewildlife andwildernessvaluesof theReserve.With its nationwidemembership
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andastaffof lawyers,scientists,andotherenvironmentalspecialists,it playsa leadingrole in a

diverserangeoflandandwildlife managementandresourcedevelopmentissues.

10. SierraClub is anationalnon-profitorganizationhavingapproximately750,000

membersdedicatedto the exploration,enjoyment,andpreservationofthescenicandnatural

resourcesof theUnitedStates,includingAlaska. TheSierraClubworks towardseducatingand

enlistingthepublic to protectandrestorethequalityofthenaturalenvironment.TheSierra

Club’s interestsencompassawiderangeofenvironmentalissues,includingwildlife

conservation,public landsandwaters,endangeredspecies,cleanwaterandcleanair. TheSierra

Club haslongbeenactivein issuesrelatingto theimpactsofoil andgasleasinganddevelopment

in America’sArctic, includingtheReserve.

11. AlaskaWildernessLeagueis anon-profitorganizationwith approximately10,000

membersand activists. It wasfoundedin 1993 to advocatefor protectionofAlaska’spublic

landsthat arethreatenedwith environmentaldegradation.Sinceits inception,it hastakenan

activeroleon issuesrelatedto oil andgasdevelopmentin Alaska.

12. NorthernAlaskaEnvironmentalCenteris an Alaskanon-profitenvironmental

advocacyandeducationalorganizationwith 1300members.It hasempoweredcitizensto takean

activerolein protectingnaturalhabitatsandwild placesin arctic andinteriorAlaskasince1971.

It advocatesfor Arctic wilderness,wildlife, andtraditionalways-of-life,transportationand

infrastructurealternativesthatminimizeimpactson wild lands,andcleanwaterandwild rivers

to protecthealth,fish, andrecreationalopportunities. It hasbeenactivelyinvolvedin efforts to

protectthekeyvaluesoftheReservefromthethreatsofoil andgasdevelopment.

13. TheCenterfor Biological Diversity (theCenter)is anon-profitorganizationbasedin

Tucson,Arizonawith aregionaloffice in Sitka,Alaska. TheCenterworks to protectwild places

4



andtheirinhabitants.The Centerbelievesthatthehealthandvigor ofhumansocietiesandthe

integrity andwildnessofthenaturalenvironmentarecloselylinked. TheCenterhasbeen

actively involvedin protectingAlaska’swildlife sincethe early1 990s,includingvariousefforts

to protectwildlife foundin theReserveandits adjoiningmarineenvironment.Theseefforts

includeworkingon critical habitatdesignationfor the spectacledandSteller’seidersandavariety

ofwork to protecttheendangeredbowheadwhale. TheCenterhas9,000membersincluding

somewho live in Alaska.

14. Membersoftheplaintiff groupsresidenear,visit orotherwiseuseandenjoythe

Northwestplanningareaforrecreation,wildlife viewing,education,research,photography,or

aestheticand spiritual enjoyment,orenjoyorotherwiseusemigratorywildlife from the

Northwestplanningarea.Theoil andgasleasingactivitiesproposedfor theNorthwestplanning

areawill directlyandirreparablyinjure theseinterests.

15. Thedefendants’unlawful actionsadverselyaffect eachplaintiffs organizational

interestsandits members’useandenjoymentofthepublic landsin andresourcesof the

Northwestplanningarea.Theoil andgasleasingactivitiesproposedfor theNorthwestplanning

areawill directlyandirreparablyinjure theseinterests.

16. Eachoftheplaintiffs submittedcommentsto BLM on thedraft EIS andFEISfor

theNorthwestplanningarea.Eachoftheplaintiff groupsmonitorstheuseofpublic landsand

compliancewith the law respectingtheselands,educatesits membersandthepublic concerning

themanagementoftheselands,andadvocatespoliciesandpracticesthat protectthenaturalvalue

andsustainableresourcesoftheselands. It is impossibleto achievetheseorganizational

purposesfully without adequateinfonnationandpublic participationin theprocessesrequiredby

law for themanagementofthesepublic lands. Theinterestsandorganizationalpurposesofthe
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plaintiffs will bedirectly andirreparablyinjuredby defendants’violationsoflaw asdescribedin

this complaint.

DEFENDANTS

17. DefendantGaleNortonis suedin herofficial capacityasSecretaryofthe

DepartmentoftheInterior.

18. DefendantHenri Bissonis suedin his official capacityastheBureauofLand

ManagementStateDirectorforAlaska.

19. DefendantBureauofLandManagement(BLM) is anagencyoftheUnitedStates

DepartmentoftheInteriorentrustedwith theconservationandmanagementofresourceswithin

theNorthwestplanningarea.

20. DefendantFishandWildlife Serviceis anagencyoftheUnitedStatesDepartmentof

Interiorchargedwith implementationoftheEndangeredSpeciesAct for listed speciesin the

Northwestplanningarea.

FACTS

TheNorthwestPlannin2Area

21. TheReservecovers23.5 million acresofpublic landon Alaska’sNorthSlope,

making it the largestsingleunit ofpublic landin thenation. TheReservestretchesfrom the

Colville River deltain theeastto theChukchiSeain thewestandfrom theArctic Oceanin the

northto theBrooksRangein thesouth. SeveralNativecommunitiesareinsidetheReserve’s

borders.TheReservehashighvaluesformanyspeciesof fish andwildlife, includingAlaska’s

largestcaribouherd,largecarnivores,marinemammals,millions ofmigratorybirds, andoneof

thedensestpopulationsofnestingbirds ofpreyin theworld.
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22. TheNorthwestplanningareaconsistsof8.8 million acres,including all ofthecentral

andwesterncoastalareaoftheReserveandthemajorityof its centralwetlandsregions. The

preferredalternativemakes100%ofthisplanningareaavailablefor oil andgasleasing.

23. TheNorthwestplanningareaincludesdiverseareas,from the foothills oftheBrooks

Rangeto coastallagoonsandinlets. Theareacontainsvastwetlandsandincludesmanylakes

andrivers. Wildlife thatdependon theareafor habitatincludepolarbears(Ursusmaritimus),

grizzly bears(Ursusarctos),wolves (Canis lupus),caribou(Rangfer tarandus),shorebirds,

raptors,and amultitudeofmigratorywaterbirds.TheNorthwestplanningareais within the

breedingrangesofspectacledandSteller’seiders,bothlisted asthreatenedundertheEndangered

SpeciesAct, andprovideshabitatfor otherrarespeciesof concern,including theyellow-billed

loon andbuff-breastedsandpiper.Therearealsothreecommunitieslocatedwithin theplanning

area—Wainwright,Atqasuk,andBarrow. Themajorityoftheresidentsofthesecommunitiesare

InupiatAlaskanswho practicesubsistencelifestylesandrelyuponresourceswithin theplanning

area.

24. In 1977,theSecretaryoftheInteriordesignatedtheUtukok RiverUplands,

TeshekpukLakeandtheColville RiverasSpecialAreaswithin theReserve.42 Fed.Reg.

28,723(1977). PortionsoftheTeshekpukLakeSpecialAreaandtheColville RiverSpecialArea

arewithin theNorthwestplanningarea.

25. Two smallportionsoftheTeshekpukLakeSpecialAreaextendacrosstheIkpikpuk

Riverinto theNorthwestplanningareaandencompass116,000acres. Bothportionshavehigh

fish andwildlife habitatvalues,particularlyfor high-densitywaterbirdnesting,includingrare

yellow-billedloons (Gaviaadamsii). Theareaalsohasvalueasinsect-reliefhabitatfor caribou

(Rang~ferterandus)from theTeshekpukCaribouHerd.
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26. Adjacentto andwestoftheTeshekpukLakeSpecialArea is theDeaseInlet-Meade

River area.This areaprovidesimportantwetlandhabitatfor waterfowl,loons, andshorebirds.

Speciesnestingherein high densitiesincludeyellow-billedandred-throatedloons (Gavia

stellata),brant(branta bernicla),greaterwhite-frontedgeese(Anseralbifrons),king eider

(Somateriaspectabilis),andthethreatenedspectacledeider(Somateriafischeri).DeaseInlet

includesanimportanthaulout for spottedseals(Phocalargha) andbothsidesoftheouterinlet

areusedby polarbears(Ursusmaritimus)for onshoredenning. Theoutercoast,includingElson

Lagoon,includesaseabirdcolony. CaribouusetheareaeastofDeaseInletasinsect-relief

habitat.Theareaalsoincludesnumerousdeep-waterlakes.

27. Locatedeastof WainwrightandwestofAtqasuk,PeardBayandtheadjacent

wetlandsto thesouthconstituteanotherimportantwildlife area. Theareais characterizedby

lowlandwet andmoisttundravegetation.PeardBayprovideshigh-densityshorebirdand

waterfowlhabitatandincludesabundanthigh-densitynestingareasfor thethreatenedspectacled

eider. PeardBay alsois aknowndenningareafor polarbears.

28. ThenorthernportionofKasegalukLagoon,which is just eastoftheReserve’s

westernboundaryandwithin theNorthwestplanningarea,providesimportantmarinemammal

habitat,particularlyfor belugawhale(Deiphinapterusleucas)summerconcentrationsand

spottedsealhaulouts. Grizzlyandpolarbearsthatseasonallyfeedon marinemammalsalsouse

the area. KasegalukLagoonhastherichestaviandiversityofanycoastallagoonsystemin Arctic

Alaska,providingimportanthabitatfor waterfowlandshorebirds.The lagoonis particularly

importantto Pacificblackbrantfor molting andfall staging. KasegalukLagoonis alsoan

importantsubsistenceareaforthe communitiesofPointLay andWainwright.
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29. Thesouthernlkpikpuk River andadjacentwetlandsalsohavehigh valuesfor fish

andwildlife. Theareasoutheastoftheheadwatersof lkpikpukRiverhashighdensitiesof

nestingperegrinefalcons(Falcoperegrinus).

30. TheColville Riveris the largestofAlaska’srivers thatflow to theArctic Ocean.

Theriver andits tributariesprovideimportanthabitatfor moose,brownbears,wolves,

wolverinesandat leasttwentyspeciesofanadromousandfreshwaterfish. Thecentralportion

(441,148acres)ofthe Colville RiverSpecialAreaoccurswithin theNorthwestplanningarea.

TheColville Riveris oneofthemostimportantraptornestingareasin Alaskaandin theworld.

TheColville andits tributariesalsoprovidediverseandabundanthabitatsfor songbirds,

ungulates,andlargecarnivores,includingwolves(Canis lupus)andgrizzly bears(Ursus arctos).

In additionto possessingwildlife andsubsistencevalues,theColville Riverwatershedincludes

severalproposednationalnaturallandmarksandimportantarcheologicalsites. It is avital source

ofsubsistenceresourcesfor arearesidentsandis a spectacularlyscenicareawith substantial

recreationvaluesandpotentialfor remote,wildernessexperiences.

NationalPetroleum Reserve-AlaskaHistory

31. In 1923,PresidentWarrenG. Hardingsetaside23.5 million acresin northern

AlaskaastheNavalPetroleumReserveNumbered4, to beadministeredby theNavyasan

assuredfutureoil supplyfor defensepurposes.

32. In 1976,PresidentGeraldFord signedtheNavalPetroleumReservesProductionAct

(NPRPA). Pub.L. 94-258, 90 Stat. 303 (1976). Among otherthings, theNPRPAtransferred

jurisdictionoverNavalPetroleumReserveNumbered4 from theSecretaryoftheNavyto the

Secretaryof theInteriorandrenamedit theNationalPetroleumReserve-Alaska.In making the

transfer,Congressexpresslyrecognizedthattheprotectionoftheuniquenatural,fish and
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wildlife, scenicandhistoricalvaluesoftheReservewouldbetterbeevaluatedandmanaged

undertheauthorityoftheSecretaryoftheInterior. Thoughauthorizingexplorationin the

Reserve,theNPRPAexpresslyprohibitsproductionofpetroleumfrom theReserveor

developmentleadingto productionofpetroleumunlessauthorizedby Congress.90 Stat. 304

(1976),42 U.S.C. § 6504.

33. In 1980,Congresspassedan appropriationsbill for fiscal year 1981 that, amongother

things,includedaprovisiondirectingtheSecretaryoftheInterior to carryout“an expeditious

program”of oil andgasleasingin theNPR-A. Act Making Appropriationsfor theDepartment

of theInteriorandRelatedAgencies,Title I, 94 Stat.2957, 2964(1980),42 U.S.C. 6508.

Pursuantto this appropriationsrider,theSecretaryundertookaleasingprogram. BLM

completedtheprogramin 1983. All leasesissuedunderthisprogramhaveexpired,andno oil

developmentoccurredasaresultof it.

34. In 1997,in responseto renewedoil industryinterestin theReserveandto arequest

from Alaska’sGovernorTonyKnowles,BLM undertookananalysisto determinewhetherto

conductoil andgasleasesalesin a4.6 million acrearealocatedin thenortheastcornerofthe

Reserve.

35. This analysisresultedin afinal EIS thatwaspublishedandmadeavailableon

August7, 1998.63 Fed.Reg.42,431. Thepreferredalternativeproposedopening87%ofthe4.6

million acrenortheastplanningareato oil andgasleasing. Underthepreferredalternative,a

589,000-acreportionoftheTeshekpukLakeSpecialAreawasmadeunavailablefor leasing.

36. On October7, 1998,SecretaryofInteriorBruceBabbittissuedafinal recordof

decisionadoptingthepreferredalternativepresentedin thefinal EIS withminor changes.
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37. This decisionis thesubjectofan ongoinglegal challengeby severalconservation

organizations.TheWildernessSocietyv. Norton,No. 98-2395(D.D.C. filed Oct. 5, 1998).

38. The Secretaryhassinceconductedtwo leasesalesandwinterexplorationhasbeen

proceedingin portionsofthe leasedarea.TheBLM is now in theprocessofconsideringa

proposalfor full-field developmenton someoftheseleasesin theNortheastarea.

39. SecretaryofInteriorGaleNortonhasrecentlyproposedto amendtheNortheastplan

andis consideringchangingcurrentprescriptiveleasestipulationsthatit considers

“inappropriatelyorneedlesslyrestrictive” andopeningadditionalareasthatwereclosedto

leasingin 1998.

The Northwest Plannin2 Area Process

40. In January2003,BLM publishedadraft environmentalimpactstatementand

integratedactivity planfor theNorthwestplanningarea. Thepurposeandneedfor this statement

wasto determinetheappropriatemultiple-usemanagementoftheplanningarea.

41. Thedraft environmentalimpactstatementcontainedfour alternatives,but did not

identify apreferredalternative.AlternativeA wouldmake100%of theplanningarea

immediatelyavailablefor oil andgasleasing. AlternativeB wouldmake96%oftheplanning

areaimmediatelyavailablefor oil andgasleasing. UnderAlternativeB, aKasegalukLagoon

specialareawasproposedandwouldbeunavailablefor leasing. AlternativeC wouldmake47%

ofthelandareaavailableto oil andgasleasing,includinglessthan2%ofthehigh oil potential

areasavailablefor leasing.Thefourthalternativewastheno actionalternative,whichNEPA

requiresagenciesto considerasabaseline.
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42. Oftheactionalternatives,only AlternativeC includedrecommendedwilderness,and

wild andscenicrivers. AlternativeC was alsotheonly alternativethatcontainedenforceable

mitigationmeasuresin the form ofleasestipulations,ratherthanrequiredoperatingprocedures.

43. All oftheactionalternativescontainedconsiderablyfewer stipulationsandrequired

operatingproceduresthanwereimposedin thepreferredalternativeselectedfor theNortheast

planningarea. In theNortheast,leaseactivities aregovernedby 79 stipulations. In the

NorthwestdraftEIS, theAlternativesA, B andC feature30,31, and 37 stipulationsandrequired

operatingproceduresrespectively.

44. After BLM publishedthedraft EIS, thefinal resultsof a studyby theNational

ResearchCouncil on thecumulativeeffectsofoil developmentin Arctic Alaskawaspublished.

This studyconcludedthatoil developmenthascausedseriousimpactsto someresourcesandthat

therearesignificantinformationgapsin existingknowledgeaboutthe impactsofoil

developmentin theArctic.

45. In December2002,AudubonAlaska(theAlaskaStateOffice oftheNational

AudubonSociety)publishedareportmakingconservationrecommendationsfortheNorthwest

planningarea. Inparticular,Audubonrecommendedcreationoffournewspecialareasin the

vicinitiesofDeaseInlet-MeadeRiver,PeardBay, KasegalukLagoon,andthesouthernIkpikpuk

River andadjacentwetlands.Audubon’srecommendationwasto makemostofthe landin these

specialareasno-leasezonesandto applyconservationstipulationsin otherareas. Audubon

submittedits recommendationasawildlife habitatalternativealongwith its commentson the

draft environmentalimpactstatement.

46. ImplementationoftheAudubonwildlife alternativewould leave65%ofthehigh oil

potentialareas,asidentifiedby BLM, opento leasing.
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47. All oftheplaintiff groupscommentedon thedraftenvironmentalimpactstatement.

ThesegroupsadvocatedthatBLM considertheAudubonwildlife alternative,or asimilar

alternative,thatwouldput themostsensitive,biologically richareasoff limits, while allowingoil

leasingin otherareas.

48. TheEnvironmentalProtectionAgencyalsorecommendedthatBLM consideran

alternativethatbalancedoil andgasexplorationanddevelopmentactivitiesandtheprotectionof

naturalandcultural resources,notingthattheexistingalternativesfailedto providethepublic

andthedecisionmakerwith a full rangeofreasonableoptions.

49. TheBLM publishedafinal environmentalimpactstatementin Decemberof2003.In

it, theBLM consideredfive alternatives—thesamefour consideredin thedraft environmental

impactstatementandapreferredalternative.

50. Underthepreferredalternativeall oftheplanningareawould beopenedto oil and

gasleasing,but leasesalesfor thewesternmostportionofthearea(totalingabout17%ofthe

planningarea)wouldbedeferredfor 10 years. KasegalukLagoonitself (approximately102,000

acres)wouldbe designatedaspecialarea,but would be availablefor leasing.

51. Thepreferredalternativeincludesasetof43 mitigationmeasuresthat aremainly in

theform ofrequiredoperatingprocedures,ratherthanprescriptiveleasestipulations.

52. Unlike thepreferredalternativechosenin theNortheastplanningarea,thepreferred

alternativefor theNorthwestdoesnotprohibitpermanentroadsconnectingfutureoil

developmentsin theReserveto theroadsystemoutside. Moreover,thepreferredalternative

evenpermitsconstructionofpermanentroadsto supportwinterexploration.

53. BLM did not analyzetheAudubonwildlife habitatalternative,oranyother

alternativethatwould provideprotectionto themostimportantwildlife habitatareaswhile
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allowing aviableoil-leasingprogram. TheAudubonwildlife habitatalternativeis oneofthe

alternativesBLM eliminatedfrom detailedanalysis.

54. Inthe final EIS, to analyzetheimpactsofits decisionto authorizeleasing,BLM

analyzedageneralhypotheticaldevelopmentscenario.Thishypotheticaldevelopmentscenario

did notprojectwhereactivitieswerelikely to takeplace. BLM basedits analysisonthe

assumptionthat developmentwould proceedwithoutpermanentroadsconnectingoil andgas

fields to thecoastoftheplanningareaor to infrastructureoutsidetheplanningarea.

55. In arecordofdecisionsignedJanuary22, 2004,GaleNortonselectedthepreferred

alternativewithminormodifications.

56. Basedon thefinal ETS andrecordofdecision,theBLM intends,without anyfurther

process,to offer leasesthatgrantthe lessee“theexclusiveright to drill for, mine, extract,remove

anddisposeofall theoil andgas...in the lands” leased.

57. BLM intendsto conductthefirst leasesalein Juneof2004.

The Bio1oi~ica1Opinion

58. BecausetheNorthwestplanningareacontainshabitatoftheSteller’s and spectacled

eiders,bothofwhich arelisted asthreatenedundertheESA, BLM requestedFishandWildlife

Serviceconsultationon theplan.

59. Onor aboutMay7, 2003 theFishandWildlife Serviceforwardedafinal biological

opinionto BLM. Thisopinionconsideredonly leasing,explorationanddelineation.

60. OnoraboutOctober2, 2003, BLM formallyreinitiatedconsultation.

61. As abasisfor thereinitiatedconsultation,BLM providedtheFishandWildlife

Servicewith abiological assessmentthatcontainedadevelopmentscenariothat assumedtwo
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anchorfieldswith six satellitefieldswouldbedevelopedin thehighoil potentialareaandthat

this developmentwouldbe“roadless.”

62. Basedon this scenario,theFishandWildlife Servicepreparedanewfinal biological

opinion,whichwasattachedto therecordofdecision.Theopinionanalyzedtheeffectsofthe

hypotheticaldevelopmentscenariopresentedin BLM’s Biological Assessmentandreacheda

conclusionofno jeopardy.TheFishandWildlife Service,however,notedthat it wasdifficult to

assesstheimpactson eidersbecauseofthe largedegreeofuncertaintyinvolved andthat

developmentbeyondthat describedin thehypotheticalscenariocreatedahighpotentialfor

significantimpactsto eiders. TheFish andWildlife Servicealsonotedthatthe“mostcertain

wayto avoidsignificantimpactsis to excludedevelopmentfrom high—densitynestingareas.~~

NorthwestRecordofDecisionAppendixC-8.

COUNT I

63. Paragraphs1 through62 arere-allegedandincorporatedby reference.

64. NEPArequiresthepreparationofanEIS for all majorfederalactionssignificantly

affectingthequalityofthehumanenvironment.42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(C).

65. An EIS mustinclude “a detailedstatement”that analyzesthedirect, indirectand

cumulativeimpactsto theenvironmentoftheproposedactionalongwith reasonablealternatives

to theproposedaction. 42 U.S.C. § 4332(C);40 C.F.R. § 1500et seq. NEPArequiresthe

agencyto takeahardlook at all environmentaleffectsoftheproposedaction. Thepresentation

ofincompleteor misleadinginformationin anEIS violatesNEPA.

66. Thefinal environmentalimpactstatementdoesnot analyzethedecisionactually

made to authorizedevelopmentleaseson the entireplanningarea—instead,it only analyzesthe
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effectsof ageneralhypotheticaldevelopmentscenario.It doesnot acknowledgeandanalyzethe

extentto whichdifferent local geographicareasaredifferentlyaffectedby disturbanceor

development.

67. Thehypotheticaldevelopmentscenariois notareasonableprojectionofactivities

likely to occurasa resultofthe leasingauthorized.

68. TheFEISdoesnotanalyzeall reasonablyforeseeableimpactsofthe leasing

authorizedona site-specificbasis. EvenwheretheFEISdoesdiscloseimpacts,it reaches

arbitraryconclusionsthat arenot supportedbytheevidence.

69. Defendants’failure to providean adequateanalysisofdirectandindirect impacts

from oil andgasleasinganddevelopmentactivitiesin theNorthwestplanningareaviolates

NEPA andis arbitrary,capriciousandnot in accordancewith law. 42 U.S.C. § 4332(C);

40 C.F.R. § 1500et seq.;5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A).

COUNT II

70. Paragraphs1 through69 arere-allegedandincorporatedby reference.

71. NEPA requiresthat anEIS include an assessmentof thecumulativeimpactsofthe

proposedactiontogetherwith the impactsofpast,present,andreasonablyforeseeableactivities.

40 C.F.R. § 1508.7. Theagencyis alsorequiredto discloseareaswheretherearedifferencesof

expertopinion.

72. TheFEISfails to providean adequateassessmentof theenvironmentalimpacts

causedby pastandpresentoil andgasactivitieson significantresourcesin theArctic regionand

fails to providean adequatecumulativeassessmentofthecombinedimpactsof all past,present,

andreasonablyforeseeableactivities.
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73. TheFEISfails to disclosedifferencesofexpertopinionregardingthecumulative

impactsof oil developmentin theArctic.

74. TheSecretary’sdecisionto proceedwithoil andgasleasingin theNorthwest

planningareain theabsenceof anadequateanalysisof cumulativeimpactsto theenvironment

wasarbitrary,capriciousandnot in accordancewith law andviolatedNIEPA, 42 U.S.C.

§ 4332(C),andtheAdministrativeProcedureAct, 5 U.S.C. §§ 702, 706.

COUNT III

75. Paragraphs1 through74 arere-allegedandincorporatedby reference.

76. UnderNEPA, anEIS mustobjectivelyevaluateall reasonablealternatives.40 C.F.R.

§ 1502.14(a).

77. TheFEISdid notanalyzeareasonablealternativethatwouldprovidelong-term

protectionfor keyresourcesandimposeprotectivestipulationswhile allowing oil andgasleasing

to proceed.

78. TheSecretary’sdecisionto authorizeleasingin theplanningareawithoutanalyzing

reasonablealternativeswasarbitrary,capriciousandnot in accordancewith law andviolated

NEPA, 42 U.S.C. § 4332(C),andtheAdministrativeProcedureAct, 5 U.S.C. §§ 702, 706.

COUNT IV

79. Paragraphs1 through78 arere-allegedandincorporatedby reference.

80. UnderNEPA, an EIS mustcontainareasonablediscussionofmeasuresto mitigate

adverseenvironmentalimpacts. 40 C.F.R.§§ 1502.14(f),1502.16(h).

81. TheFEISdoesnot containareasonedanalysisoftheeffectivenessoftheproposed

mitigatingmeasures.
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82. TheFEISdoesnotprovideanybasisuponwhichto evaluatethemitigatingeffects

that thestipulationsandrequiredoperatingproceduresmighthave. TheFEISdoesnot explain

whytheprescriptiveleasestipulationsusedin theNortheastdecisionhavebeenabandonedor

whetherthenewapproachwill provideasimilarorappropriatelevelof protectionfor the

resourcesin theNorthwest.

83. TheSecretary’sdecisionto authorizeleasingin theplanningareawithout analyzing

theeffectivenessoftheproposedmitigationmeasureswasarbitrary,capriciousandnot in

accordancewith law andviolatedNEPA, 42 U.S.C. § 4332(C),andtheAdministrativeProcedure

Act, 5 U.S.C. §§ 702, 706.

COUNT V

84. Paragraphs1 through83 arere-allegedandincorporatedby reference.

85. Pursuantto Section7 oftheESA, 16 U.S.C. § 1536, eachfederalagencyundertaking

an actionwhichmight adverselyaffectathreatenedor endangeredspeciesmustconsultwith

eithertheFishandWildlife ServiceortheNationalMarineFisheriesServiceto insurethatits

actionis not likely tojeopardizethecontinuedexistenceofthatspecies.

86. Thedecisionheremayaffect thespectacledandSteller’seiders,whicharelisted as

threatenedundertheESA. Accordingly,BLM wasrequiredto consultwith theFishandWildlife

Service.

87. Consultationsunderthe ESAresultin biological opinions,in whichtheconsulting

agency,heretheFishandWildlife Service,mustadequatelyaddresswhetherjeopardyto the

speciesis likely. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b).

88. In assessingthepotentialforjeopardyto thespecies,including from incidentaltake

ofthespecies,theFishandWildlife Service’sbiologicalopiniondoesnot considerthepotential
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for theoil leasesactuallyauthorizedtojeopardizetheSteller’sandspectacledeiders,but rather

analyzesanarrowlyconstruedhypotheticalscenario.

89. Thebiologicalopiniondoesnotconsiderpastandpresentimpactsofall federal,

state,orprivateactionsthatmayaffect thespectacledandSteller’seiders.

90. TheFishandWildlife Service’sbiological opinionon the Steller’sandspectacled

eideris arbitraryandcapriciousin violation oftheEndangeredSpeciesAct, 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b)

andtheAPA, S U.S.C. §§ 702, 706.

91. TheSecretary’sdecisionto authorizeoil andgasleasingin theabsenceof avalid

biological opinionwasarbitrary, capriciousandnot in accordancewith law andviolatedthe

ESA, 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a).andtheAdministrativeProcedureAct, 5 U.S.C. §§ 702, 706.

COUNT VI

92. Paragraphs1 through91 arere-allegedandincorporatedbyreference.

93. TheNIPRPAexpresslyprohibitsproductionofpetroleumfrom theReserveor

developmentleadingto productionof petroleumunlessauthorizedby Congress.42 U.S.C.

§ 6504(a)(1976).

94. The 1980appropriationsriderdid not grantthe Secretarycontinuingorpermanent

authorizationto conductleasingin theNPR-A. Inthe 1980rider, CongressgrantedtheSecretary

authorityto conductonly a limited, interim programofoil andgasleasingin theNPR-A.

94 Stat.2964(1980),42 U.S.C. § 6508. TheSecretary’sauthorityto prescribean “expeditious

program”of oil andgasleasingunderthe 1980appropriationsrider expiredat theendofthe

leasingprogramin themid-1980s.

95. Theprohibitionin theNPRPAonproductionofpetroleumor developmentleading

to productionofpetroleumfrom theNPR-A remainscontrolling. 42U.S.C. § 6504(a).
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96. TheSecretary’sdecisionto maketheNW NPR-Aplanningareaavailablefor oil

andgasleasingwithouttherequisiteCongressionalauthorizationwasarbitrary,capriciousand

not in accordancewith law andviolatedtheNPRPA,42 U.S.C.§ 6504(a),andthe

AdministrativeProcedureAct, 5 U.S.C. §§ 702, 706.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Therefore,plaintiffs respectfullyrequestthat theCourt:

1. DeclarethatdefendantshaveviolatedNEPA, theESA,theNPRPA,andthe

AdministrativeProcedureAct, andthattheactionsasset forth abovearearbitrary,capriciousand

not in accordancewith law;

2. Enterappropriateinjunctivereliefto ensurethatthe defendantscomplywithNEPA,

theESA, theNPRPA,andtheAdministrativeProcedureAct, andto preventirreparableharmto

theplaintiffs andto theenvironmentuntil suchcomplianceoccurs;

3. Awardplaintiffs thecostsof thisaction,includingreasonableaffomeys’fees,pursuant

to theEqualAccessto JusticeAct, 28 U.S.C. § 2412;

4. Grantsuchotherrelief astheCourt deemsjust andproper.

Datedthis 16th dayof February2004.

Respectfullysubmitted,

‘ ~

DeirdreMcDonnell
AKBar# 0111082
Earthjustice

Attorneysfor plaintiffs NorthernAlaska
EnvironmentalCenter,NationalAudubonSociety,
TheWildernessSociety,NaturalResourcesDefense
Council,SierraClub, AlaskaWildernessLeague
andCenterForBiologicalDiversity
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